

### Stanislaus County Public Facilities Fees Committee Meeting Agenda

### Thursday, April 20<sup>th</sup>, 2023 1010 10<sup>th</sup> Street, Modesto Covell Conference Room (2005/2<sup>nd</sup> floor) 2:00-3:30 p.m.

**AGENDAS:** Committee Agendas are posted in the posting board on the Tenth Street Plaza 72 hours prior to the meeting.

**REASONABLE ACCOMMODATIONS:** In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Committee Secretary at 209-573-1398. Notification 72 hours prior to the meeting will enable the County to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.

**PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD:** Matters under the jurisdiction of the Committee, and not on the posted agenda, may be addressed by the general public at the beginning of the regular agenda and any off-agenda matter before the Committee for consideration. However, California law prohibits the Committee from taking action on any matter, which is not on the posted agenda unless it is determined to be an emergency by the Committee. Any member of the public wishing to address the Committee during the Public Comment period will be limited to a maximum of five minutes.

Materials related to an item on this agenda submitted to the Committee after distribution of the agenda packet are available for public inspection in the Stanislaus County Counsel's Office during normal business hours.

If you have questions regarding this meeting, please call Lori Sicard of the Stanislaus County Counsel Office at 222-7158.

STRIVING TOGETHER TO BE THE BEST!

1010 10<sup>th</sup> Street, Ste. 6800, Modesto, CA 95354 Post Office Box 3404 Modesto, California 95353 Phone: 209.525.6333 Fax: 209.558-4423 Stanislaus County Public Facilities Fees Committee (PFF) Agenda

April 20, 2023

Call to Order

Public Comment Period

Roll Call (Verbal)

### A. Action Items:

- 1. Approval of Minutes from the PFF Committee Meeting on March 16, 2023
- 2. Presentation, discussion and action regarding the Salida Fire Protection District Facilities Impact Fee Study Final Report

### B. Discussion Item(s):

1. Auditor's Report

### C. Next Regular Meeting:

- Thursday, May 18, 2023 @ 2-3:30 p.m., Room 2005
- Next meeting agenda items

## Stanislaus County Public Facilities Fees Committee Meeting Minutes

March 16, 2023 2:00 p.m.

1010 10<sup>th</sup> Street, Room 2001 (2<sup>nd</sup> floor conference room)

#### Voting Members Present:

Patrick Cavanah – Chair (CEO); David Leamon (Public Works); Dan Wirtz (GSA-Capital Facilities); Chris Barnes (Auditor/Controller); Lori Sicard (County Counsel); Andy Johnson (GSA-Capital Facilities – Alternate);

#### Absent:

Denny Ferreira (Planning/**Building**); Kristin Doud (**Planning**/Building); Tracie Madison (Public Works – Alternate); Angelina Souther (Auditor/Controller-Alternate)

#### Also Present:

Tera Chumley (Director of Parks & Recreation) Vinal Chand (Parks & Recreation) William Shirley (Recorder)

Meeting called to order at 2:06 p.m. by Chair, Patrick Cavanah.

Public Comment – No public comments.

Roll call: A quorum of membership was established.

Note: Members were informed this meeting is being recorded.

#### A. Action Items:

1. Approval of Minutes from the PFF Committee Meeting on February 16, 2023

Minutes may be voted on by those Members in attendance at the date of the Meeting. Voting Members Present: Patrick Cavanah (CEO); Dan Wirtz (GSA-Capital Facilities); Chris Barnes (Auditor/Controller); Lori Sicard (County Counsel); David Leamon (Public Works)

A Motion was made to approve the PFF Committee Meeting Minutes of February 16, 2023.

Motion: Wirtz | Second: Leamon | Unanimous (5 | 0) | Abstain: None

#### B. Discussion Items

1. Consider the Request from Parks & Recreation for the use of PFF Funds to supplement the Oregon Park Project.

Chair Cavanah invited Tera Chumley, Director of Parks & Recreation to present this request. Ms. Chumley shared the scope of the Oregon Park Project, which includes a new walking/jogging loop trail and adult exercise area, new solar lighting, security cameras throughout the park, renovation of an existing splash pad, basketball court, two existing playgrounds and construction of one new shade structure, a new vandalism resistant restroom (Portland Loo type) and landscape renovation throughout the park.

The last major renovation to the park occurred in 2004, nearly 20 years ago. Parks & Recreation was awarded grant funding in the amount of \$1,231,000 from the State of California Proposition 68 Grant program. Total costs of the new additions to the park, with associated staff and professional services costs, are \$655,644. Parks & Recreation believes that they are eligible to use PFF funds in the amount of \$362,046.34, based on population growth using the 1990 PFF Study.

After some discussion, it was determined that Neighborhood Parks were not included as part of the 1990 Public Facilities Fees Comprehensive Study, which precludes Parks & Recreation from using the calculation based on population growth using the 1990 PFF Study. Based on this assessment, Parks & Recreation revised the requested amount to reflect population growth based on the 2003 PFF Comprehensive Study, which reduced the request from \$362,046.34 to \$80,906.47 from Fund 2413 (Neighborhood Parks).

Motion to Accept: Wirtz | Second: Leamon | Unanimous (5 | 0) | Abstain: None

2. Consider the Request from Parks & Recreation for the use of PFF Funds to supplement the Burbank-Paradise Road Park Project.

Parks & Recreation Business Manager, Vinal Chand, presented this request. The scope of this project includes new major recreational features that include: a new playground with shade, splash pad, walking/jogging loop with an adult exercise equipment area, picnic areas with barbecues, new landscaping, solar lighting, and security cameras throughout the park. The Burbank-Paradise Park Project was awarded grant funding in the amount of \$945,000 from the State of California Proposition 68 Grant program.

Based on the revision to the Oregon Park Project PFF funding request, Parks & Recreation revised this request to reflect the population growth calculation using the 2003 PFF Comprehensive Study. This reduced the requested PFF funding use from \$631,717 to \$141,169.60 from Fund 2413 (Neighborhood Parks).

Motion to Accept: Wirtz | Second: Leamon | Unanimous (5|0) | Abstain: None

3. Auditor's Report

Unobligated Cash Balance - \$18,103,246.52

Member Barnes noted that collections are approximately \$5,000,000 for the year.

#### Stanislaus County Public Facilities Fees Committee Meeting Minutes – March 16, 2023

### C. Next Regular Meeting:

• Thursday, April 20, 2023 @ 2-3:30 p.m. Meetings will be held in-person at Tenth Street Place, Room 2005 (2<sup>nd</sup> floor) or TBD.

Meeting adjourned at 2:40 p.m.

Submitted from recording by: William Shirley, Confidential Assistant IV

# DEVELOPMENT I MPACT FEE STUDY FIRE FACILITIES



JANUARY 2023

Prepared by:



2436 Professional Drive, Suite 300 Roseville, CA 95661 (916) 641-2734 www.capitolpfg.com

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section 1: Executive Summary 1
Section 2: The Mitigation Fee Act 2
Purpose of the Fee2Use of the Fee3Benefit Relationship3Burden Relationship3Proportionality3Other Requirements of AB 1600.4
Section 3: Methodology for Impact Fee Study
Facility Standards Methodology 5
Section 4: Previous Studies/Current Fees
Section 5: District Demographic Data
Other District Information
Section 6: Existing Assets 10
FACILITIES10VEHICLES AND CAPITAL EQUIPMENT10
Section 7: Anticipated Growth 11
Residential Development
Section 8: Necessary Facilities
Existing Capital Resources13Future Apparatus, Vehicle & Capital Equipment Costs13Available Revenue Sources14Total Estimated Costs14
Section 9: Development Impact Fee Calculation
Impact Fee Calculation 16   Imposing the Fee on Different Types of Property Types 17
Section 10: Assessing the Fee
Section 11: Implementation
FIRE DISTRICT BOARD APPROVAL19COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS APPROVAL19FEE ACCOUNTING19USE OF THE FEE19INFLATION ADJUSTMENT20REPORTING REQUIREMENTS20



### SECTION 1: EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Salida Fire Protection District (the "District") provides fire protection, fire prevention, emergency medical to the unincorporated communities of Salida and Del Rio as well as the rural area identified as Wood Colony.

This study is intended to update the development impact fee imposed by the District. This report summarizes an analysis of the need for fire facilities and equipment to accommodate new development within the District's boundaries and documents a reasonable relationship between new development, the fee, and the facilities and capital equipment to be funded.

Stanislaus County has and will continue to experience growth. As a consequence, local public works are faced with the challenge of providing service to an expanding customer base with limited resources for upgrading the infrastructure necessary to accommodate such expansion. The District too faces the challenge of providing fire facilities and services to service new development within its boundaries. The impact fees collected as a result of new construction provides a funding source for the construction of fire facilities and purchase of vehicles and equipment necessary for this purpose.

This report updates the development impact fee based on the current values of all fire equipment and facilities necessary to protect current residents at current service levels. This fee is translated into a per square foot cost that is imposed on any new construction which may occur. Impact fees paid will allow for the District to provide the necessary facilities, vehicles, and equipment necessary to maintain current service levels.

This report supports the adoption of a development impact fee for fire facilities of **\$0.73** per square foot of new construction. This fee is in compliance with the Mitigation Fee Act (California Government Code Section 66000 et. seq.), and this report substantiates the findings required by the Act.

Upon the submittal of this report to the District, it is incumbent upon the District Board of Directors (the "Board"), assisted by staff, to review and evaluate the report for accuracy and agreement with the conclusions presented. Once the Board is satisfied that the legislative requirements of Government Code Section 66000 et. seq. are met and the fee adjustment recommendations are valid, the Board shall submit a recommendation regarding the fee adjustments to the Stanislaus County Board of Supervisors for enactment.

After accepting and considering public input, the County Board of Supervisors shall vote to approve the findings and a resolution to set the appropriate fees. If accepted, the fees would be imposed pursuant to the County's development "police powers" under Article XI, section 7, of the California Constitution.



### SECTION 2: THE MITIGATION FEE ACT

In 1987, the California Legislature adopted Assembly Bill 1600 which established a uniform process for formulating, adopting, imposing, collecting, accounting for, and protesting impact fees. In order to impose an impact fee, a local agency must go through a process to establish a reasonable relationship between a development project and the public improvement for which the development fee is charged.

The most important part of AB 1600 is the requirement for findings that connect any impact stemming from a development project to the type and amount of the fee imposed or what is commonly referred to as the "Nexus" requirement. Government Code Section 66001 states that after January 1, 1989, in any action "establishing, increasing, or imposing a fee as a condition of approval of a development project," the local agency shall do all of the following:

- 1) Identify the purpose of the fee.
- 2) Identify how the fee is to be used. If the use is for financing public facilities, the facilities shall be identified.
- 3) Determine how a reasonable relationship exists between the fee's use and the type of development project on which the fee is imposed.
- 4) Determine how a reasonable relationship exists between the need for the public facility and the type of development project on which the fee is imposed.
- 5) Determine how there is a reasonable relationship between the amount of the fee and the cost of the public facility or portion of the public facility attributable to the development on which the fee is imposed.

#### Purpose of the Fee

The purpose of this development impact fee is to ensure that new development within the District pays its proportionate share of the capital investments to be made by the District along with its share of future capital costs, which are necessary to provide fire protection, fire suppression and other fire safety services adequate to accommodate a growing service population. The District is prudent in requiring that new development not burden existing property owners with the cost of public facilities required to accommodate growth. The District can further this objective through the imposition of development impact fees. The purpose of the development impact fee is to implement this policy by providing a funding source from new development for capital improvements to serve that development. The fee helps to ensure that the level of service is maintained as new development offsets the increased costs of providing service as growth occurs.



#### <u>Use of the Fee</u>

The development impact fee will fund new construction of fire stations, apparatus, vehicles, and capital equipment needed to serve new development. All facilities and capital equipment will be located within the boundaries of the District. As detailed in the following sections of this report, these facilities include:

- land for new fire stations
- fire station construction or expansion
- fire apparatus acquisition
- vehicle acquisition
- capital equipment acquisition
- financing costs associated with the above listed capital expenditures

This report provides the cost estimates for projected facility needs.

#### Benefit Relationship

The District will restrict fee revenues to the acquisition of land, construction/reconstruction/ expansion of buildings, and purchase of apparatus, vehicles and capital equipment, and related financing costs to serve new development. Fire facilities and capital equipment funded by the fee will further the District-wide network of services accessible to the additional residences and businesses associated with new development. Thus, there is a reasonable relationship between the use of fee revenues and the residential and non-residential types of new development that will pay the fee.

#### Burden Relationship

The purpose of assessing an impact fee is to provide the capital resources necessary to sustain a constant level of service for fire protection, emergency medical response, rescue and extrication, containment and mitigation of hazardous materials exposure, and other life safety services that is required of a growing service population. Based on the District's historical experience in responding to calls for service among the varying types of development in its boundaries, it is appropriate to assess the on fee on a uniform basis in order to share the costs on a pro rata basis among existing and new development. Thus, there is a reasonable relationship between the use of the fee and the type of development served by the capital resources funded by the fee.

#### **Proportionality**

The reasonable proportionality relationship can be established by identifying the facility costs attributable to future development, then establishing fee rates that allocate those costs in proportion to the demands created by each type of development project. The fee apportions costs between the existing population and new development in a manner proportional to their contribution of the need for that facility. Further, fees are imposed based on building size as measured by habitable and enclosed square feet of each building. Thus, larger buildings that



have a greater demand for fire service and related capital facilities and equipment pay a proportionately higher fee than smaller buildings.

#### Other Requirements of AB 1600

In addition to the Nexus requirements, AB 1600 also outlines the accounting for future revenue received through imposition of impact fees on new construction projects. AB 1600 requires that upon receipt of a fee, the local agency deposit into a separate capital facilities account or fund, in a manner to avoid any commingling of the fees with other revenues and funds of the agency, and expend the fees solely for the purpose for which the fee was collected. Interest gained on the capital facilities accounts or funds shall be separated, accounted for, and expended in the same manner.

The agency Board shall make findings once each fiscal year with respect to any portion of the fee remaining unexpended or uncommitted in its account five or more years after the deposit of the fee. The finding shall identify the purpose to which the fee is to be put and to demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the fee and the purpose for which it was charged.

The agency shall refund to the current record owner(s) of the project, on a prorated basis, the unexpended or uncommitted portion of the fee, with interest, for which the required findings cannot be made. Upon certain circumstances, with appropriately noticed hearings, the legislation allows alternative actions.

The agency shall annually adopt and update, by resolution at a publicly noticed hearing, any capital improvement plan defined in this legislation.



### SECTION 3: METHODOLOGY FOR IMPACT FEE STUDY

Development impact fees are calculated to fund the capital needs that are a direct result of growth due to new development. In order to fund the improvements needed due to growth occurring within the District, it is necessary to determine what the appropriate fee should be. There are four basic steps followed in the calculation of any development impact fee, these include:

- 1. Prepare growth projections;
- 2. Identify facility standards;
- 3. Determine the amount and cost of facilities required to accommodate new development based on facility standards and growth projections;
- 4. Calculate the public facilities fee by allocating the total cost of facilities per unit of development (on a square foot basis).

#### Facility Standards Methodology

One important issue in development impact fee studies is the identification of facility standards. Facility standards determine new development's total need for new facilities and each development unit's fair share of those needs. Standards also ensure that new development does not fund deficiencies associated with existing development.

The District will determine the size and location of fire stations, vehicles, and equipment necessary to ensure they will be sufficient to accommodate the personnel needed to serve the amount of new development anticipated. This study uses the District's existing inventory of facilities, vehicles, and equipment combined with planned facilities needed to accommodate future development as the District's facilities standard. The District's existing inventory of facilities, vehicles, and equipment serves the entire District and will serve future development. Further, additional facilities, vehicles, and equipment will be needed to serve the anticipated future service population because of new development.

The District currently provides fire and emergency response services to a large response area. Given the District's size and protection facilities, vehicles, and equipment available at any one time, it is understandable that new construction will only exacerbate the protection challenges of the District. Given such facts, the District has determined that current service levels will be used as a benchmark and that new construction will not adversely affect these service levels.

To mitigate new construction's impact on the District's service capabilities, new development must be required to pay development impact fees. Assuming that the current levels of service being provided to the District's residents are to be considered the standard, any additional construction within the District's boundaries which requires fire or emergency response services, will pay an impact fee that is proportionate to such service. Given the existing demands placed on the District, existing stations, vehicles, and equipment should not be



utilized to accommodate new construction at the expense of existing service levels. To offset the impact, the development impact fees will be used to construct or purchase new facilities, vehicles, and equipment necessary to accommodate such growth.

The District's inventory of existing and planned fire facilities was used as part of the basis for calculating the District's facility standard. This standard is used to determine new development's fair share obligation for expanded facilities as growth occurs. The District's existing fire protection facilities described in this Report currently serve the entire District. The facility standard utilized in this study will specifically benefit any new development that will occur within the District as it will fund the expansion of facilities at the same standard currently serving existing development.

The District has the flexibility to alter the list of necessary facilities shown in this report as conditions change. If the overall cost of facilities necessary to mitigate the anticipated residential and commercial growth is altered significantly then the District should update this fee program to incorporate those changes.



### SECTION 4: PREVIOUS STUDIES/CURRENT FEES

The Salida Fire Protection District's previous development impact fee study was prepared in July 2008. Based upon the analysis performed by MuniFinancial, the development impact fees for fire facilities, shown in *Table 1* below, were recommended.

Current Impact Fees		
Impact Fee per		
Construction Type	Square Foot	
Residential	\$0.49	
Commercial	\$0.68	
Office	\$0.92	
Industrial	\$0.34	
Unoccupied Agricultural	\$0.17	

TABLE	1
-------	---

Source: Salida Fire Protection District

Capitol Public Finance Group, LLC was contracted by the Salida Fire Protection District to provide this updated Development Impact Fee Study. This study is intended to establish the legal and policy basis for the calculation and imposition of impact fees on all new development within the District. The study will analyze the impact of recent and future construction on the needs of District, evaluate the existing mitigation program that was adopted in July 2008, and consider the changes that have occurred in the development community since the study was completed.

Ultimately, this study will demonstrate the need for an adjustment to the development impact fee due to the increasing amount of development within the District's boundaries and the rapidly increasing cost of building public facilities.



### SECTION 5: DISTRICT DEMOGRAPHIC DATA

The District serves the unincorporated communities of Salida and Del Rio as well as the rural area identified as Wood Colony. As shown in *Figure 1*, the District is located south of the Stanislaus River, west of McHenry Avenue, and north of Shoemake Avenue; it is adjacent to the northwesterly portion of the City of Modesto.



The District was established in 1942, and is responsible for the protection of a variety of geographical areas, ranging from residential neighborhoods, commercial and industrial buildings, rural areas, State Routes 99, 209 and 108 as well as the Stanislaus River. The District covers 43 square miles and serves a population of approximately 21,000 people residing in almost 7,000 housing units.

#### Other District Information

The District provides a full range of services, including fire prevention, fire suppression, and emergency medical response in addition to a variety of other miscellaneous requests. The District is a Special District, a self-governed agency led by a five-member Board of Directors, and is composed of 6 full time employees, 1 part time employee, and 3 volunteers.



The District responded to 8,170 service calls from 2017 through 2021. Rescue and EMS calls amounted to 59.5% of the service calls, as shown in Chart **1**. On average the District had approximately 1,634 service calls per year over the past five years.



Source: Salida Fire Protection District



### SECTION 6: EXISTING ASSETS

#### **Facilities**

The District currently operates out of three fire stations, two are located in Salida and one is located in Modesto. An inventory of the District's stations and the year they were constructed is shown in *Table 2* below. The insured value includes an estimated land value of \$300,000 per acre.

TABLE 2

Salida Fire Protection District Fire Station Inventory			
Building	Address	Year Built	Insured Value
Fire Station #1	4820 Salida Boulevard, Salida	1966	\$3,034,036
Fire Station #2	1330 Ladd Road, Modesto	1978	\$2,014,738
Fire Station #3	5551 Ciccarelli Road, Salida	2005	\$3,007,631
Total			\$8,056,405

Source: Salida Fire Protection District

#### Vehicles and Capital Equipment

The District's current vehicle and apparatus inventory is shown below in *Table 3*. The value of the District's current capital equipment is not available; however, it was determined that the estimated value of its capital equipment would be equal to 15% of the District's total value of its existing stations (\$8,056,405) and vehicles (\$1,300,000). Therefore, the District's current capital equipment is valued at \$1,403,461.

Salida Fire Potection District Apparatus and Vehicle Inventory			
Apparatus Type	Year	Estimated Replacement Value	
International Water Tender	1996	\$250,000	
GMC Sierra Pickup	2003	\$50,000	
Pierce International Contender Pumper Type 3	2011	\$450,000	
Rosenbauer Pumper Type 1 Engine	2019	\$550,000	
Total		\$1,300,000	

TABLE 3

Source: Salida Fire Protection District



### SECTION 7: ANTICIPATED GROWTH

#### Residential Development

Stanislaus County and the District have and continue to experience growth given the relative affordability of land and homes and proximity to major urban centers. Over the last five years, the District has seen the addition of 7 residential units per year, as shown in *Table 4* below. It is expected that this rate of growth will continue over the next five years for a total of approximately 35 new residential units.

I ABLE 4		
5 Year Historical New Residental Development		
Year	# of Residential Units	
2018	7	
2019	7	
2020	-	
2021	8	
2022	7	
Average	7	

TABLE	4
-------	---

To estimate the square footage of new residential development, the average square footage of current residential units within the District was determined using ParcelQuest and then applied to the estimated number of units expected to be built over the next 5 years.

TABLE 5

Estimated Residential Development Square Footage			
Total Estimated # of Units	Average Current Residential Square Footage	Estimated Square Footage	
35	1,886	66,010	

#### Commercial/Industrial Development

As residential construction continues within the boundaries of the District, an inherent demand for commercial facilities is created. Using the District's developer fee collections over the last five years the District has added an average of 85,665 square feet of commercial/industrial building space per year, shown in *Table 6* below. It is expected that this rate of growth will continue over the next five years for a total of approximately 428,325 square feet of new commercial/industrial building space.



Source: Salida Fire Protection District

5 Year Historical New Commercial/Industrial Development		
Year	Commercial/ Industrial Square Footage	
2018	46,060	
2019	90,825	
2020	27,544	
2021	108,118	
2022	155,780	
Average	85,665	

TABLE	6
-------	---

As the demand for fire suppression and emergency response increases due to new construction, the capabilities and overall quality of protection services and personnel provided degrades proportionally. The only plausible mitigation from the District's perspective is the addition of facilities, equipment, and personnel to provide existing service levels to any new construction which may occur. This is accomplished through the modernization and upgrade of existing facilities, or the construction of entirely new facilities. This will serve to support timely response and maintain adequate supplies of apparatus and equipment so that the District may maintain its current service levels while accommodating any new growth.

As residential construction continues, an inherent demand for commercial facilities may also be created. As these developments may significantly affect the District's service requirements, the District must consider these properties when planning and assessing its ability to maintain high levels of service to existing residents and as well these new properties that will be added to its service population.



Source: Salida Fire Protection District

### SECTION 8: NECESSARY FACILITIES

#### Existing Capital Resources

As previously detailed in Section 6 and summarized in *Table 7* below, the District has invested approximately \$10.7 million into its capital assets.

Capital Asset Summary		
Type of Asset	Total Insured Value	
Fire Stations	\$8,056,405	
Apparatus and Vehicles	\$1,300,000	
Equipment	\$1,403,461	
Total	\$10,759,866	

# TABLE 7

#### Future Apparatus, Vehicle & Capital Equipment Costs

The District has a policy that new development will not adversely impact the existing service levels and subsequently response capabilities. As the District's existing fleet ages, new apparatus and equipment will need to be purchased to both meet the demands of the existing service population and offset the increased demand and meet District standards. The District has projected that it will require acquisition of the apparatus, vehicles, and equipment shown in *Table 8*. It is anticipated that financing will be necessary for the District because fire impact fees are paid as units are constructed but new apparatus will be needed prior to development build-out. As such, it is assumed that 50% of the apparatus acquisition will need to be financed.



TA	BLE	8

Apparatus, Vehicle and Equipment Needs				
Туре	Estimated Cost			
Apparatus and Vehicles				
Water Tender	\$250,000			
Type 1 Engine	\$550,000			
Type 3 Engine	\$450,000			
Pickup Truck	\$50,000			
Financing Costs (Up-Front and Interest)	\$600,000			
Total Apparatus and Vehicle Estimated Costs	\$1,900,000			
Equipment (15% Total Apparatus and Vehicle Estimated Costs)	\$195,000			
Total Apparatus, Vehicle and Equipment Needs Estimated Costs	\$2,095,000			

#### Available Revenue Sources

The District intends to commit all available developer fee funds to the projects. As of January 2023, the District had approximately \$524,941 in developer fees available to commit to facilities projects.

#### **Total Estimated Costs**

Adding together the current capital assets with the cost of improvements to the existing stations and new apparatus results in the total estimated capital impact from new development in the District, as shown in *Table 9*.

Combined Total Capital Assets and Future Costs				
Type of Asset	Total Estimated Value/Costs			
Current Capital Assets	\$10,759,866			
Future Improvement Costs	\$2,095,000			
Total Estimated Capital Impact	\$12,854,866			
Less Development Fee Balance	\$524,941			
Net Total Estimated Capital Impact	\$12,329,925			

TABLE	9
-------	---

Source: Salida Fire Protection District



The District is currently utilizing all available Mitigation and General Fund revenues to fund existing expenditures and will not have sufficient funds to offset the cost of future capital needs.



### SECTION 9: DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE CALCULATION

To properly express the impact of new construction on the service quality and capabilities of the District, the District's impact fee will be justified by taking the total value of assets of the District and dividing the value across all assessable square footage within the District boundaries. Then, the average size of units within the District will be applied to the per unit value to determine a per square foot value.

#### Impact Fee Calculation

To calculate the amount of the development impact fee necessary on a per square foot basis, for all properties within the District's boundaries, we will identify the cost to provide facilities and equipment to new construction at existing levels. To accomplish this goal, we must first identify the total number of structures within the District. Although the District covers a wide ranging service area, including open land and large forest areas, the impact fee calculated will include solely on structures with assessable square footage.

As described in Section 7, the estimated square footage of new construction within the District is 494,337. Using ParcelQuest it was determined that there is currently 16,746,747 total square footage of building space within the District. As shown in *Table 10*, over the next 5 years the District expects to have approximately 17.2 million square feet of building space within its boundaries.

Estimated Current and Futrue Development by Square Footage				
Square Footage				
Current Structures	16,746,747			
Anticipated New Construction 494,337				
Total Square Footage 17,241,084				

To calculate the amount of the development impact fee necessary, on a per square foot basis, we first identify the unfunded facilities cost of \$12,329,925, as stated in Section 8. We then determine the total square footage of residential, commercial, and industrial construction within the District, which is 17,241,084 square feet. Finally, we divide the total facilities cost (\$12,329,925) by the total square footage of building space within the District (17,241,084 square feet).



#### TABLE 11

Impact Fee Calculation					
Total Estimated Costs	\$12,329,925				
Future Service Square Footage	17,241,084				
Cost per Square Foot	\$0.72				

Therefore, as shown in *Table 11*, the District can justify a development impact fee for fire facilities of **\$0.72** per square foot of new construction.

#### Imposing the Fee on Different Types of Property Types

The District serves non-residential parcels with the same capital equipment as residential parcels, based on the relative size of the development, with a more equipment intense response for larger buildings. For all calls that the District responds to, the Type 1 engine is the first to respond, with the exception of wildfire/vegetation calls, when the Type 3 engine is first. The type of property does not impact the apparatus or equipment that is used for response. As such, the same fee is applied to all new construction, regardless of the use of the property. Imposing the impact fee on a per square foot basis provides for proportionate funding based on the size of the building and the resulting fire response.

As stated above, the District can justify a development impact fee for fire facilities of \$0.72 per square foot of new construction. In addition to the cost of fire facilities and equipment necessary to serve new development, there is an administrative cost to the District to justify, impose and collect development impact fees. The administrative cost is estimated to be 2% of the fee. As such, approximately \$0.01 is added to the fee to cover the cost of administering the fee program bringing the total fee up to **\$0.73** per square foot of new construction.



### SECTION 10: ASSESSING THE FEE

The fee is a uniform fee that will be applicable to new construction, including residential, commercial, office, and industrial building space as well as to additions to existing buildings which requires the issuance of a permit or approval from the County of Stanislaus.

Future large or specialized commercial/industrial development may require special considerations and should be judged on a project-by-project basis. Commercial and industrial development should be reevaluated during the routine review of impact fees for fire and hazmat response data to support the different fee structure. An in lieu mitigation agreement may be needed in order to adequately collect mitigation fees from commercial and/or industrial development with unique considerations.

Residential categories other than single-family dwellings, are differentiated by their size as the fee is assessed on a per square foot basis. These fees are recommended to include the square footage of all classes of covered structures constructed within the District. A covered structure is defined as a roof assembly, as the same is described within the Uniform Building Code, or as defined by the Stanislaus County Fire Development fee ordinance.



### SECTION 11: IMPLEMENTATION

If the District Board concurs with and chooses to increase the fee as provided for in this study, the following process should be followed for fee implementation.

#### Fire District Board Approval

The District Board should adopt a resolution and make a recommendation to the County Board of Supervisors to adopt this fee pursuant to the County's "police powers" under Article XI, section 7 of the California Constitution.

#### County Board of Supervisors Approval

The County Board of Supervisors should adopt the proposed fee schedule in compliance with California Government Code section 66016 through 66018. The County should:

- 30 days before the County approves the fee, the County must post a notice of public hearing on their website and where notices are physically posted;
- Send a notice of a public hearing at least 14 days prior to the hearing to any party that has submitted a written request for such a notice. Have this report and all supporting documentation available for review by the public at least 10 days prior to the hearing. Publish notice of the public hearing in a newspaper of general circulation at least 10 days prior to the scheduled hearing, with a second notice published at least 5 days after the first hearing notice. The notice should include the time and place of the meeting as well as a general explanation of the matter to be considered;
- Hold the public hearing to consider adoption of the development impact fee;
- Adopt an implementing ordinance to establish the County and Fire District's authority to impose the proposed fee and automatically adjust the fee annually for inflation, and adopt a resolution or ordinance to set the fee;
- Begin collecting the fee no sooner than 60 days following adoption of the ordinance and resolution.

#### Fee Accounting

The District should deposit all fee revenues into a restricted public facility fee account. Interest earned on fund balances should be credited to the fund.

#### Use of the Fee

The District should only use fee revenues for capital expenditures that expand the District ability to deliver fire services to accommodate new development. Use of the fee in this manner



documents a reasonable relationship between new development and the use of fee revenue. The Fire District may alter the scope of the capital expenditures or substitute new capital projects as long as the project continues to represent an expansion of the District's capabilities. If the total cost of all capital expenditures varies from the total cost used as a basis for the fee, the District should revise the fee accordingly.

#### Inflation Adjustment

The Fire District should adjust the fee annually for inflation in the cost of the capital expenditures to be funded by the fee. A construction cost index should be based on a reputable and easily identifiable source such as the *Engineering News Record*. Any inflationary adjustment must first be authorized in the enacting resolution or ordinance approved by the County.

#### Reporting Requirements

The District should comply with the annual and five-year reporting requirements of Government Code section 66000 et. seq. Annually, the District must identify the fee revenues received and for what purposes they were expended.



## A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE SALIDA FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT RECOMMENDING TO THE STANISLAUS COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS THE ADOPTION OF THE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE STUDY AND INCREASING THE DEVELOPMENT IMPACT FEE FOR ALL DEVELOPMENT WITHIN THE BOUNDARIES OF THE SALIDA FIRE PROTECTCTION DISTRICT

- WHEREAS, RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Salida Fire Protection District (the "District") as follows:
- WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 66001 the District, through the County of Stanislaus, may levy a fee on all new residential, commercial, and industrial development within the District boundaries, to fund the capital equipment and facilities construction needs of the District;
- **WHEREAS,** the County of Stanislaus holds the police power to enact an increase in the development impact fees on behalf of the District;
- **WHEREAS,** the District has a plan which states an overall vision for the construction and equipping of stations in order to meet the demands of the citizens within the District;
- WHEREAS, the District has performed a study to assess the impact on the District's facilities from residential, commercial, and industrial development and established a nexus between such development and the need for funding to construct facilities;
- WHEREAS, the impact fees collected shall be used to finance the public facilities described or identified in the *Salida Fire Protection District Development Impact Fee Study* or other public facility master plans as may from time to time be adopted by the Governing Board of the District;
- WHEREAS, after considering the specific project descriptions and cost estimates identified in the *Salida Fire Protection District Development Impact Fee Study,* the Governing Board approves such project descriptions and cost estimates and finds them reasonable as the basis for calculating and imposing certain impact fees.

### NOW, THEREFORE, it is hereby ORDERED and DETERMINED, as follows:

Section 1. The Salida Fire Protection District Development Impact Fee Study is hereby

adopted by the District.

- Section 2. The Board of the District recommends to the Board of Supervisors of the County of Stanislaus the adoption and implementation of an increase in the Fire Mitigation Fee on behalf of the District as set forth in the Salida Fire Protection District Development Impact Fee Study under the police powers granted to the County in order to support public services.
- Section 3. The fee shall be solely used (1) for the purposes described in the Salida Fire Protection District Development Impact Fee Study, or (2) for reimbursing the District for the development's fair share of those capital improvements already constructed by the District.
- Section 4. Annually, as part of the budget process, the Fire Chief shall review the estimated cost of the described capital improvements, the continued need for those improvements and the reasonable relationship between such need and the impacts of the various types of development pending or anticipated and for which the fee is charged.
- Section 5. The development impact fees, including any increases for inflation as authorized by the State, shall be collected prior to the issuance of a building permit on each eligible unit, based on the habitable and enclosed square footage of the building.

APPROVED AND ADOPTED on this 16th day of March 2023.

	Ann	
On motion of Director	9) 1991115	, Seconded by Director
On motion of Director	<i>.</i>	

And approved by the following vote:

Ayes: 4 Directors: Home, Bert, Riggins & Dignam
Nays: Directors:
Excused or Absent: Directors: GOB
Abstaining: Directors:
CHAIRMAN: harbs Sterre
Mark Stone, Board President
ATTEST: Danielle Denczek, Clerk oDthe Board

1

APPROVED AS TO FORM BY:

Kass

William Ross, Esquire District Counsel

## Stanislaus County PFF Funds Unobligated Cash Balances As of March 31, 2023

		Cash Balances	Open Project Balances Not Yet	Unobligated Cash Balances
Fee	Description	As of 3/31/2023	Withdrawn	As of 3/31/2023
2400	Regional Transportation Impact Fee	10,843,036.74	(9,190,994.38)	1,652,042.36
2401	City/County Roads	823,725.33	-	823,725.33
2402	Detention	8,342,537.91	-	8,342,537.91
2403	Criminal Justice	856,582.69	-	856,582.69
2404	Library	531,747.88	(3,400,001.01)	(2,868,253.13)
2405	Regional Parks	4,003,412.43	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	4,003,412.43
2406	Health	5,200,739.74	(3,720,656.56)	1,480,083.18
2407	Behavioral Health	827,013.17	- · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	827,013.17
2408	Other Facilities	5,046,066.81	(2,364,470.00)	2,681,596.81
2409	Administrative Fees	236,701.75	-	236,701.75
2410	Sheriff	724,955.29	-	724,955.29
2411	Emergency Services	175,879.10	-	175,879.10
2412	Admin Fees Unincorporated	142,550.64	-	142,550.64
2413	Neighborhood Parks	808,382.32	(221,807.75)	586,574.57
2414	Animal Services	639,080.18	(10,200.00)	628,880.18
2415	Info Technology	213,507.21	- · · · · · · ·	213,507.21
2416	Crows Landing IBP Traffic Facilities	-	-	-
2417	Crows Landing IBP Water Facilities	-	-	-
2418	Crows Landing IBP Wastewater Facilitie	-	-	-
2419	Crows Landing IBP Storm Drain Facilitie	-	-	-
	Subtotal	39,415,919.19	(18,908,129.70)	20,507,789.49
6400	Regional Transportation Impact Fee	298,678.68	-	298,678.68
6401	City/County Roads	4,574.89	-	4,574.89
6402	Jails	1.53	-	1.53
6403	Justice	58,242.54	-	58,242.54
6404	Library	0.01	-	0.01
6405	Parks	268.32	(268.32)	-
6406	Public Health	1,311,856.76	(1,262,207.40)	49,649.36
6407	Outpatient	712,066.67	(685,136.04)	26,930.63
6408	Other Facilities	8,690.46	(8,563.00)	127.46
6409	Administrative Fees	8.13	-	8.13
6410	Sheriff Patrol	1,319.97	-	1,319.97
6411	Fire Warden	21,710.35	-	21,710.35
6412	Admin Fees-Unincorporated	6.03	-	6.03
6413	Other Facilities-Unincorporated	28,279.90	(25,359.00)	2,920.90
	Subtotal	2,445,704.24	(1,981,533.76)	464,170.48
	Grand Total	41,861,623.43	(20,889,663.46)	20,971,959.97

**Note:** The Unobligated Cash Balances column is the total cash balance available for future department PFF requests. All open PFF project balances have been deducted from this column.

**Note**: The Open Project Balances Not Yet Withdrawn include amounts approved by the Board of Supervisors and amounts approved by the PFF Committee. Amounts approved by the PFF Committee may have not yet been approved by the Board of Supervisors.

#### Public Facilities Fees Activity For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2023

Activity from New Fee Structure Effective 5/12/03						
Fee	Fees Collected	Interest Earned	Adjustments	Refunds	Distributions	Net Activity
2400 Regional Transportation Impact Fee	\$ 3,794,297.17	\$ 33,735.10	\$-	\$-	\$ (2,168,334.01)	\$ 1,659,698.26
2401 City/County Roads	-	2,727.28	-	-	-	2,727.28
2402 Detention	594,829.35	26,242.55	-	-	-	621,071.90
2403 Criminal Justice	73,389.69	2,665.23	-	-	-	76,054.92
2404 Library	168,062.00	1,371.60	-	-	(199,998.99)	(30,565.39)
2405 Regional Parks	164,846.00	12,874.65	-	-	-	177,720.65
2406 Health	193,097.54	16,770.72	-	-	-	209,868.26
2407 Behavioral Health	52,116.53	2,615.95	-	-	-	54,732.48
2408 Other Facilities	644,538.47	15,219.27	-	-	-	659,757.74
2409 Admin Fees	90,909.74	726.40	-	-	(65,216.75)	26,419.39
2410 Sheriff	59,023.00	2,278.62	-	-	-	61,301.62
2411 Emergency Services	9,376.94	560.29	-	-	-	9,937.23
2412 Unincorp-Admin Fees	13,664.00	448.73	-	-	-	14,112.73
2413 Neighborhood Parks	24,962.00	2,616.71	-	-	-	27,578.71
2414 Animal Services	40,185.00	2,025.80	-	-	-	42,210.80
2415 Information Technology	6,039.05	692.21	-	-	-	6,731.26
2416 Crows Landing IBP Traffic Facilities	-	-	-	-	-	-
2417 Crows Landing IBP Water Facilities	-	-	-	-	-	-
2418 Crows Landing IBP Wastewater Facilities	-	-	-	-	-	-
2419 Crows Landing IBP Storm Drain Facilities	-	-	-	-	-	-
Sub-Totals	\$ 5,929,336.48	\$ 123,571.11	\$-	\$-	\$ (2,433,549.75)	\$ 3,619,357.84

Activity from Original Fee Structure						
Fee	Fees Collected	Interest Earned	Adjustments	Refunds	Distributions	Net Activity
6400 Regional Transportation Impact Fee	\$-	\$ 998.33	\$-	\$-	\$-	\$ 998.33
6401 City/County Roads	-	15.16	-	-	-	15.16
6402 Jails	-	0.06	-	-	-	0.06
6403 Justice	-	192.84	-	-	-	192.84
6404 Library	-	0.01	-	-	(1.01)	(1.00)
6405 Parks	-	0.89	-	-	-	0.89
6406 Public Health	-	4,343.44	-	-	-	4,343.44
6407 Outpatient	-	2,357.59	-	-	-	2,357.59
6408 Other Facilities	-	28.78	-	-	-	28.78
6409 Admin Fees	-	0.03	-	-	-	0.03
6410 Sheriff	-	4.37	-	-	-	4.37
6411 Fire Warden	-	71.88	-	-	-	71.88
6412 Unincorp-Admin Fees	-	0.02	-	-	-	0.02
6413 Unincorp-Other Facility		93.63	-	-	-	93.63
Sub-Totals	\$-	\$ 8,107.03	\$-	\$-	\$ (1.01)	\$ 8,106.02
TOTAL ALL FEES	\$ 5,929,336.48	\$ 131,678.14	\$-	\$-	\$ (2,433,550.76)	\$ 3,627,463.86
GRAND TOTAL JUL-21 - MAR-22	\$ 5,766,617.03		\$-	\$ (24,916.00)		
CHANGE FROM PRIOR YEAR TO DATE	3%	-41%	0%	-100%	-58%	2477%

### Public Facilities Fees Open Projects Summary By Use As of March 31, 2023

		Sum of Open PFF Project Withdrawals	Sum of Open PFF Project Balances Available for
Project & Fee Description	Amounts	as of 3/31/2023	Withdrawal
Admin Fees	\$ 65,216.75		\$ -
Administrative Fees - County	44,384.52	44,384.52	-
2409-Admin Fees	44,384.52	44,384.52	-
Administrative Fees - City	20,832.23	20,832.23	-
2409-Admin Fees	20,832.23	20,832.23	-
Project	50,863,886.89	29,974,223.43	20,889,663.46
RTIF McHenry Widening Project #9616	7,657,026.00	3,866,629.31	3,790,396.69
2400-Regional Transportation Impact Fee	7,657,026.00	3,866,629.31	3,790,396.69
SR 132 West Extension: 99 to Dakota	5,000,000.00	4,610,810.44	389,189.56
2400-Regional Transportation Impact Fee	5,000,000.00	4,610,810.44	389,189.56
Tobacco Endowment Debt Payment - Turlock Library	4,000,001.01	600,000.00	3,400,001.01
2404 - Library	3,996,782.34	596,781.33	3,400,001.01
6404 - Library	3,218.67	3,218.67	-
HSA Administration and Public Health Facility	5,668,000.00	-	5,668,000.00
2406-Health	3,720,656.56	-	3,720,656.56
6406-Public Health	1,262,207.40	-	1,262,207.40
6407-Outpatient	685,136.04	-	685,136.04
Harvest Hall Modernization Project -Design	2,299,982.00	-	2,299,982.00
2408-Other Facilities	2,299,982.00	-	2,299,982.00
SR 132 West Extension: Dakota to Gates Proj# 9642	4,158,677.78	4,053,677.78	105,000.00
2400-Regional Transportation Impact Fee	4,158,677.78	4,053,677.78	105,000.00
Claribel Road Extension Project # 200016- NCC PH 1	15,458,286.00	14,557,691.50	900,594.50
2400-Regional Transportation Impact Fee	15,458,286.00	14,557,691.50	900,594.50
McHenry Ave and Stanislaus Bridge Replacement Proj 9593	614,816.03	514,816.03	100,000.00
2400-Regional Transportation Impact Fee	614,816.03	514,816.03	100,000.00
Nearmap Aerial Photography/GIS	196,822.00	98,412.00	98,410.00
2408-Other Facilities	128,976.00	64,488.00	64,488.00
6408-Other Facilities	17,127.00	8,564.00	8,563.00
6413-Unicorp-Other Facility	50,719.00	25,360.00	25,359.00
Faith Home Rd/Garner Rd Bridge over Tuolumne River Proj#9738	5,578,000.00	1,672,186.37	3,905,813.63
2400-Regional Transportation Impact Fee	5,578,000.00	1,672,186.37	3,905,813.63
Oregon Park Project	80,906.47	-	80,906.47
2413-Neighborhood Parks	80,638.15	-	80,638.15
6405-Parks	268.32	-	268.32
Burbank-Paradise Park Project	141,169.60	-	141,169.60
2413-Neighborhood Parks	141,169.60	-	141,169.60
Two Hybrid Vehicles	10,200.00	-	10,200.00
2414 - Animal Services	10,200.00	-	10,200.00
Grand Total	\$ 50,929,103.64	\$ 30,039,440.18	\$ 20,889,663.46

### Public Facilities Fees Open Projects Summary By Fee As of March 31, 2023

		Project Withdrawals	Sum of Open PFF Project Balances Available for
Fee & Project Description	Amounts	as of 3/31/2023	Withdrawal
Admin Fees	\$ 65,216.75		Ş -
2409-Admin Fees	65,216.75	65,216.75	-
Administrative Fees - City	20,832.23	20,832.23	-
Administrative Fees - County	44,384.52	44,384.52	-
Project	50,863,886.89	29,974,223.43	20,889,663.46
2400-Regional Transportation Impact Fee	38,466,805.81	29,275,811.43	9,190,994.38
Claribel Road Extension Project # 200016- NCC PH 1	15,458,286.00	14,557,691.50	900,594.50
Faith Home Rd/Garner Rd Bridge over Tuolumne River Proj#9738	5,578,000.00	1,672,186.37	3,905,813.63
McHenry Ave and Stanislaus Bridge Replacement Proj 9593	614,816.03	514,816.03	100,000.00
RTIF McHenry Widening Project #9616	7,657,026.00	3,866,629.31	3,790,396.69
SR 132 West Extension: 99 to Dakota	5,000,000.00	4,610,810.44	389,189.56
SR 132 West Extension: Dakota to Gates Proj# 9642	4,158,677.78	4,053,677.78	105,000.00
2404 - Library	3,996,782.34	596,781.33	3,400,001.01
Tobacco Endowment Debt Payment - Turlock Library	3,996,782.34	596,781.33	3,400,001.01
2406-Health	3,720,656.56	-	3,720,656.56
HSA Administration and Public Health Facility	3,720,656.56	-	3,720,656.56
2408-Other Facilities	2,428,958.00	64,488.00	2,364,470.00
Harvest Hall Modernization Project -Design	2,299,982.00	-	2,299,982.00
Nearmap Aerial Photography/GIS	128,976.00	64,488.00	64,488.00
2413-Neighborhood Parks	221,807.75	-	221,807.75
Burbank-Paradise Park Project	141,169.60	-	141,169.60
Oregon Park Project	80,638.15	-	80,638.15
2414 - Animal Services	10,200.00	-	10,200.00
Two Hybrid Vehicles	10,200.00	-	10,200.00
6404 - Library	3,218.67	3,218.67	-
Tobacco Endowment Debt Payment - Turlock Library	3,218.67	3,218.67	-
6405-Parks	268.32	-	268.32
Oregon Park Project	268.32	-	268.32
6406-Public Health	1,262,207.40	-	1,262,207.40
HSA Administration and Public Health Facility	1,262,207.40	-	1,262,207.40
6407-Outpatient	685,136.04	-	685,136.04
HSA Administration and Public Health Facility	685,136.04	-	685,136.04
6408-Other Facilities	17,127.00	8,564.00	8,563.00
Nearmap Aerial Photography/GIS	17,127.00	8,564.00	8,563.00
6413-Unicorp-Other Facility	50,719.00	25,360.00	25,359.00
Nearmap Aerial Photography/GIS	50,719.00	25,360.00	25,359.00
Grand Total	\$ 50,929,103.64		\$ 20,889,663.46

#### Public Facilities Fees Open Project List As of March 31, 2023

			Board Action Item	Board Action Item Open PFF Project Open PFF Project				
		Date of PFF	No.	Approved Open PFF	Withdrawals as of	Balances Available for	PFF Oracle Fee # (for Transfer	
Dept	Project Description	Committee Request	(i.e. "2015-123")	Project Amounts	3/31/2023	Withdrawal	Out)	Project Type
			Budget, 2019-0513, 2019-		-,-,			
			0512, 2019-0553, 2019-				2400-Regional Transportation	
PW	RTIF McHenry Widening Project #9616	Budget	0587, 2019-0588, 2019- 0589	7,657,026.00	3,866,629.31	3,790,396.69	Impact Fee	Project
		8		.,,.	-,,	-,	2400-Regional Transportation	
PW	SR 132 West Extension: Dakota to Gates Proj# 9642	None	2018-0193	4,158,677.78	4,053,677.78	105,000.00	Impact Fee	Project
		literic	2010 0150	1,150,011110	1,000,077110	200,000,000	2400-Regional Transportation	
PW	SR 132 West Extension: 99 to Dakota	None	2018-0247	5,000,000.00	4,610,810.44	389,189.56	Impact Fee	Project
	Faith Home Rd/Garner Rd Bridge over Tuolumne	Hone	2010 0217	5,000,000,000	1,010,010111	000,200.00	2400-Regional Transportation	110,000
PW	River Proj#9738	None	Budget, 2019-230	5,578,000.00	1,672,186.37	3,905,813.63	Impact Fee	Project
				-,		-,,	2400-Regional Transportation	
PW	Claribel Road Extension Project # 200016- NCC PH 1	None	2019-0708	15,458,286.00	14,557,691.50	900,594.50	Impact Fee	Project
	McHenry Ave and Stanislaus Bridge Replacement			-,,	, ,	,	2400-Regional Transportation	
PW	Proj 9593	None	2020-0438	614,816.03	514,816.03	100,000.00	Impact Fee	Project
				,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,			
CEO	Tobacco Endowment Debt Payment - Turlock Library	10/18/2018	2019-0700	3,996,782.34	596,781.33	3,400,001.01	2404 - Library	Project
PKS	Oregon Park Project	3/16/2023		80,638.15	-	80,638.15	2413-Neighborhood Parks	Project
PKS	Oregon Park Project	3/16/2023	0	268.32	-	268.32	6405-Parks	Project
PKS	Burbank-Paradise Park Project	3/16/2023		141,169.60	-	141,169.60	2413-Neighborhood Parks	Project
AS	Two Hybrid Vehicles	2/16/2023		10,200.00	-	10,200.00	2414 - Animal Services	Project
CEO	Tobacco Endowment Debt Payment - Turlock Library	10/18/2018	2019-0700	3,218.67	3,218.67	-	6404 - Library	Project
CEO	HSA Administration and Public Health Facility	10/18/2018	2020-0121	3,720,656.56	-	3,720,656.56	2406-Health	Project
CEO	HSA Administration and Public Health Facility	10/18/2018	2020-0121	1,262,207.40	-	1,262,207.40	6406-Public Health	Project
CEO	HSA Administration and Public Health Facility	10/18/2018	2020-0121	685,136.04	-	685,136.04	6407-Outpatient	Project
CEO	Harvest Hall Modernization Project -Design	None	2020-0122	2,299,982.00	-	2,299,982.00	2408-Other Facilities	Project
ITC	Nearmap Aerial Photography/GIS	3/18/2021	2021-0220	128,976.00	64,488.00	64,488.00	2408-Other Facilities	Project
ITC	Nearmap Aerial Photography/GIS	3/18/2021	2021-0220	17,127.00	8,564.00	8,563.00	6408-Other Facilities	Project
ITC	Nearmap Aerial Photography/GIS	3/18/2021	2021-0220	50,719.00	25,360.00	25,359.00	6413-Unicorp-Other Facility	Project
CEO,PL,								
AC,CC,P								
W,AC,G								
SA	Administrative Fees - County	N/A	N/A	44,384.52	44,384.52	-	2409-Admin Fees	Admin Fees
Cities	Administrative Fees - City	N/A	N/A	20,832.23	20,832.23	-	2409-Admin Fees	Admin Fees
Total				50,929,103.64	30,039,440.18	20,889,663.46		

#### Public Facilities Fees Projects Closed For the Nine Months Ended March 31, 2023

Dept	Project Description	Date of PFF Committee Request	Board Action Item No. (i.e. "2015-123")	Date of Final Draw	Date Closed	PFF Amount Approved	PFF Amount Withdrawn	Unexpended PFF Balance of Closed Projects	PFF Oracle Fund # (for Transfer Out)	Confirmed by
	Carpenter Road and Whitmore Avenue intersection improvement				- / /					
PW	Project# 9736		2019-0372	6/18/2021	3/31/2023	2,324,625.00	2,058,652.31	265,972.69	2400	Tracie Madison
PW	Geer-Santa Fe Crossing Signal Proj# 9704		2017-251, 2018- 0139	6/30/2022	3/31/2023	2,451,246.00	2,300,524.18	150,721.82	2400	Tracie Madison
L										